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ndependent Auditors Report

To the Members of Nureca Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nureca Limited (hereinafter referred to as the
“Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as
“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2024, of its consolidated
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
along with the consideration of reports of the other auditors referred to in paragraph (a) of the “Other
Matters” section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition
See Note 2.10 and Note 22 to consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized In view of the significance of the matter we applied
when control in goods is transferred to the the following audit procedures in this area, among
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Nureca Limited

customer and is measured net of rebates, others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

discounts and returns. * We assessed the appropriateness of the revenue
We have identified recognition of revenue as a recognition accounting policies against the
key audit matter as— requirement of Ind AS 115 i.e. Revenue from

* revenue is a key performance indicator; and  contracts with customers.

» there is a risk that revenue may be overstated < We evaluated the design and implementation of key

because of fraud, resulting due to the internal financial controls in relation to revenue

pressures to achieve performance targets as recognition and tested the operating effectiveness of

well as meeting external expectations which such manual controls for a sample of transactions;

makes it susceptible to misstatement. + We performed testing by selecting statistical
samples of revenue transactions recorded during the
financial year. For such samples, verified the
underlying documents, including invoices, customer
acceptances/delivery documents (as applicable) to
assess whether these are recognized in the
appropriate period in which control is transferred.
» We tested, on a sample basis (selected based on
specified risk-based criteria), specific revenue
transactions recorded before and after the financial
year end date to determine whether the revenue had
been recognized in the appropriate financial period.
* We tested journal entries for revenue, selected
based on specified risk-based criteria to identify
unusual items.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s annual report, but
does not include the financial statements and auditor’s report(s) thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the audit reports of other
auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’'s and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Nureca Limited

for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Nureca Limited

independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in paragraph (a) of the section
titled “Other Matters” in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company Holding Company
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

a. We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total
assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 56.85 millions as at 31 March 2024, total revenues
(before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 167.97 millions and net cash flows (before consolidation
adjustments) amounting to Rs. Nil for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors.

b. The financial statements of one subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total assets (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 0.74 million as at 31 March. 2024, total revenues (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs. Nil and net cash flows outflow (before consolidation adjustments)
amounting to Rs. (0.02) millions for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements, have not been audited either by us or by other auditor. These unaudited financial
statements been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary,
and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiary, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and according to
the information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements are not
material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to the financial statements
certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Nureca Limited

on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries, as was audited by other
auditors, as noted in the "Other Matters” paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors except for the matters stated in the paragraph
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 01 ‘April 2024 and 5 April 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in
India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31
March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 2B(f) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, as noted in the “Other Matters”
paragraph:

a.

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2024 on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2024.

There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India during
the year ended 31 March 2024.

d (i) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated

in India whose financial statements has been audited under the Act represented to us and the
other auditors of such subsidiary companies that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the Note 42 (v) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries”), with the
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Nureca Limited

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated
in India whose financial statements has been audited under the Act represented to us and the
other auditors of such subsidiary companies that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the Note 42 (vi) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies
shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has
come to our or the other auditors notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii)
above, contain any material misstatement.

The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India have neither declared
nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, and work performed by the respective
auditors of the subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act, except for instances mentioned below, the Holding Company
and its subsidiary companies have used an accounting software for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective softwares:

(a) in respect of Holding Company, Audit trail (edit log) was not available for more than 99
changes, if any for every master data or transaction

(b) in respect of Holding Company, due to the absence of reporting on compliance with the audit
trail requirements in the independent auditor's report in relation to controls at service organization
for such accounting software, we are unable to comment whether audit trail feature of the said
software was enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in
the database layer or whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature being tampered
with.

(c) in case of a subsidiary company incorporate in India, the accounting software did not have the
audit trail feature enabled throughout the year

Further, where audit trail trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the year, we
and respective auditor of such subsidiary company did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Nureca Limited

C. Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reporis
of the statutory auditor of such subsidiary companies incorporated in India which were not audited by
us, the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The
remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company is in accordance with the requisite
approvals as mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. The Ministry
of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are
required to be commented upon by us. '

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

foburh, ek

Ankush Goel

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 505121
Date: 15 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24505121BKGXDF1942
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Nureca Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following company
incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, has unfavourable
remarks, qualification or adverse remarks given by its auditor in the report under the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (CARO): -

Sr. No. Name of the CIN Holding Clause number

entities Company/Sub of the CARO
sidiary/ JV/ report which is

Associate unfavourable

or qualified or

adverse
1 Nureca Limited L24304MH2016PL Holding (xvii)
C320868 Company

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Abuoh otk

Ankush Goel

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 505121
Date: 15 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24505121BKGXDF 1942
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Nureca Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Nureca Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and such
companies incorporated in India under the Act which are its subsidiary companies, as of that date.

In our opinion and based on the consideration of report of the other auditor on internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of subsidiary company, as were audited by the other auditors, the
Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companies, have, in
all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such
internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by such companies considering the
essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance
Note").

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the respective company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controfs with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
of the relevant subsidiary companies in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Nureca Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inhérent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to two subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the
auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Anaoh ]

Ankush Goel

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 505121
Date: 15 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24505121BKGXDF1942
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Nureca Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assets
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3a 31.20 3135
(b) Right-of-use assets 4 16.92 29.06
(¢) Intangible assets 3b 22,97 26.13
(d) Capital work in progress 3¢ 2,70 -
(¢) Financial assets
- Other financial asseis 6 2,92 75.25
() Deferred tax assets (net) 31 49,02 27.29
(g) Other tax assets (net) Ta - 11.09
Total non-current assets 125.73 200.16
(2) Current assets
(2) Inventories 8 308.51 344,77
(b} Financisl assets
- Investments 5 936.33 590.85
-Trade receivables 9 16.15 42,95
- Cash and cash equivalents 10 140.62 5.04
- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 11 31242 704.62
-- Other financial assets 6 83.28 40.98
(c) Other current asscts 12 128.61 127.10
(d) Other tax assets (net) ¥ - 932
Total current assets 1,925.92 1,865.63
Total assets 2,051.65 2,065.79
Equity and liabilities
1) Equity
{8) Equity share capital 13 100.00 100.00
(b) Other cquity 14 1.831.11 1.848.82
Total equity 1,931.11 1,948.82
Liabilities
(2) Non- current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilitics
- Borrowings 15A 3.26 -
- Lease liabilities 16 1479 2027
(b) Provisions 17a 9.76 7.88
Total non-current liabilities 27.81 28.15
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 158 1.58 0.82
- Lease liabilitics 16 5.53 12.18
-Trade payables 18
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 5.02 291
- total outstanding ducs of creditors other (than micro and small enterprises 46.72 46.99
- Other financial liabilities 19 0.62 0.36
(b) Other current liabilitics 20 23.22 22.59
(c) Provisions 17b 1.68 2.30
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 21 8.36 0.68
Total currcnt liabilities 92.73 88.83
Total liabilities 120.54 116.98
Total equity and liabilities 2,051.65 2,065.79
Marenal accounting policies 2
Notes to the consolidated financial staternents 344

The accompanying niotes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

for BSR & Co.LLP For and on behalf of
Chartered Accountants Nureca Limited
Firm registration number: 101248 W/W-100022

At faih

of Lircetors of

Ankush Goel Saurabh Goyal Aryan Goyal
Lartner Managing Director Whole-time direcior & CEOQ
Membership Number : 505121 IN : 00136037 DIN : 00002869
Place; Chandigarh Pluov: Chundignrh
Date: 15 May 2024 Date: 15 May 2024
(N Cheraflnond
Noresh Gupta Chema Apand
Chief Finanetal Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 504198 Membership No.: 31099
Place: Gurugram Place: Chandigarh Place: Chandigarh

Date: 15 May 2024 Date: 15 May 2024 Date: 15 May 2024



Nureca Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income ]
I Revenue from operations 22 919.28 1,113.23
II Other income 23 105.14 71.05
Il Total income (1+1I) 1,024.42 1,184.28
IV Expenses
Cost of material consumed 24 97.60 35.18
Purchase of stock-in-trade 25 464.70 41242
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 26 43.85 307.71
Employee benefits expense 27 122.01 160.59
Finance costs 28 4.89 4.50
Depreciation and amortization expense 29 23.62 23.88
Other expenses 30 293.19 34742
Total expenses (IV) 1,049.86 1,291.70
V' Loss before tax (II-IV) (25.44) (107.42)
VI Tax expense:
(i) Current tax 31 15.60 1.16
(i) Deferred tax 3 (23.10) (26.08)
Total tax expense (7.50) (24.92)
VI Loss for the year (V-VI) (17.94) (82.50)
VII Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 0.35 0.77)
Income tax relating 1o remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (0.10) 0.19
Jtems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of a foreign operation (0.03) (0.09)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (net of tax) 0.22 (0.67)
IX  Total comprebensive income for the year (VII+VII) (17.72) (83.17)
Earnings per equity share
Basic and diluted [nominal value of INR 10 per share] 32 (1.79) (825)
Material accounting policies 2
Nates to the consolidated financial statements 3-44

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 101248W/W-100022
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Nureca Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR million, unless atherwise siated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
A Cash Nows from operating activities

Loss before tax for the period (25.44) (107.42)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization expense 23.62 23.88

Income on unwinding of security deposits (0.13) (0.03)

Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) (0.01) (0.03)

Finance costs 4.89 4,50

Expected credit loss on trade receivables 1.02 0,25

Frovision for doubtful advance 0.10 325
(38.41) (42.16)

Inlerest income

Fair value changes end net gain/loss on investment (58 68) (24.24)
Operating cash flows before working cspifal changes (93.09) (142.20)
Working capital adjustments
Decrease in inventories 36.26 287.00
N e Yin trade receivabl 27.05 (13,76)
Increase in trade payables 1.85 177
(Incrense)/ decrease in other assets (13.45) 26,14
Increasef(decrease) in other financial liabitities 0.19 (022)
Increase/(decrease) in other curent liabilities 0.62 (18.58)
Increase in provisions 091 3.5
Cash (used in) generated from npersting activities (39.61} 143.74
Income tax paid (net) 1249 {4147}
Net cash {used in) generated lrom operating activities (A ) (27.12) 102.27
B Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (10.86) {3.96)
Interest income received 96.94 12.23
Purchase of investment (2,015,52) (424.81)
Proceeds fram sale of investment 1,728 74 . 19025
Fixed deposits matured (Net) 37645 51.73
Net cash generated from/ (used ip) investing activities ( B) 175.76 (164.56)
C Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of lease liabilities (Prinicipal) (12.22) (10.75)
Payment of lease liabilities (Interest) 2.31) (3.26)
Interz=st paid (2.51) (1.12)
Proceed of non-current borrawings 430 -
Proceeds from currenl borrowings - 0.06
(Repayment) from non current borrowings (029) -
Net cash {used in¥ generated from financing activities ( C) (13.03) {15.07
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 135.61 (7136)
Effect of exchange rate Quctuations on cash & cash equivalents held in foreign currency (0.03) {0.09)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5.04 82.4%
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of (be year 140,62 5.04
Nates:
L. Commonents of cash and cash eauivalents
Balances with banks:
- In coment accounts 13.12 5.04
- Fixed deposits with original maturity uplo three months 127.50 -
190.62 soi
2. The above cash flow stateinent has been prepared under the indirect method set out in the applicable Indian A ing Standard (Ind AS) 7
on "Statement of Cash Flows", Also, refer to note 2.3.16.
3 Reconcilintion of movements of curyent and non-current borrowings to cash Nows arising from financing activities
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Borrowings al the beginning of the yesr (i rent borrowings)
Proceeds from non-curtent bomowings 430
Repayment of non-current borrowings 0,54 -
Borrowings at the end of the year (non-current berrowings) 424 -
4 Reconciliafion of movements of lease liabilities to cash Oows arising from financing activities during the period:
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Baluure a1 8t beginning of the period 3254 43,29
Additions - =
Accreditation of interes) 231 3.26
Payment of lease linbilities (14.53) (14.01)
Bslance as at end of the period 20.32 32.54
—_— e
Material accounting policies 2
Notes to the lidated fi ial 344

‘The accompanying notes form an integral part of the

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR& Ca. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 101248W/W-100022
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Dale: 15 May 2024 Date: 15 May 2024
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Chief Financial Officer Company Secrelary
Menbeiship No, 504198 Menbaship No : 31089
Place; Chandigarh Place: Chandigarh
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Nureca Limited

(Amuount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

A Equity share capital

Consolidnted Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

Ankush Goel
Partner
Membership Number : 505121

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 May 2024

DIN : 00136037

Tace: Chandigarh
ate: 15 May 2024

Managing Director

R PR

Naresh Gupta

Chief Financial Officer
Membership No.: 504198

Place: Chandigarh

Date; 15 May 2024

i Note As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Particulars
13 Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,00,00,175 100.00 1,00,00,175 100.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year _1_.90.00.175 100.00 1.00._10.115 100.00
B Other equity (Refer note 14)
Particulars Reserves and surplus Other comprehensive income Total equity|
Capital Securities premium Retained Foreign Currency Translation
reserve earnings Reserve
Balance as at 1 April 2023 (12.96) 987.79 874.07 (0.08) 1,848.82
Total comprehensive income for the year
Add : Loss for the year - - (17.94) . (17.94)
Add ; Other compreh Mloss (net of tax) for the vear - - 0.25 {0.03) 0.23
Tolal com El‘thmh: income for the year 12,96 987.79 856,39 {0.11) 1,831.1 1
——— S
Balance 75 st 31 March 2024 (12.96) 987.79 856,39 (0.11) 1,831.11
Particulars Reserves and surplus Other comprehensive income Total equity|
Capital Securities premium Retained  Foreign Currency Transiation
reserve earnings Reserve
Balance as at 1 April 2022 (12.96) 987.79 957.15 0.01 1,931.99
Total comprehensive income for the year
Add ; Loss for the year - (82.50) . (82.50)
Add : Other comprehensi floss (net of tax) for the year - - (0.58) (0.09) (0.67)
Total comprehensive income for the year (12.96) 987.79 874.07 (oln_a;_ 1,848.82
o2 T —— ——
Balance as at 31 March 2023 (12.96) 987.79 874.07 (0.08) 1,848.82
Material accounling policies 2
Notes to the consolidated financial nts 3-44
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of d of Difectors of
Chartered Accountants Nureca Limited.
Firm registration number: 101248W/W-100022
4||¢ew!| ,,,.,-—»'L_,/L
Saurebh Goyal Aryan Goyal

Whole-time director & CEO
DIN : 00002869

Place: Chandigarh

Date: 15 May 2024

%Zflm /J"a

Chetoa Anand
Company Secretary
Membership No.: 31099
Place: Chandigarh

Date: 15 May 2024




Nureca Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Note 1. Corporate information

Nureca Limited (“the holding Company”) and its subsidiaries, (collectively, the Group), is a public limited
company which is domiciled and incorporated in Republic of India under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (CIN L24304MH2016PLC320868) on 02 November 2016 . The Company was converted into
a public company with effect from 08 July 2020 with registered office situated at 101 Office Number Udyog
Bhavan, 1st Floor Sonawala Lane, Goregaon E, Mumbai — 400063. The Company got listed on Bombay
Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange (NSE) in India on 25 February 2021.

The Group is engaged in the business of home healthcare and wellness products.

Note 2. Material accounting polices

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

a. Statement of compliance

These consolidated Ind AS financial statements (“Ind AS financial statements™) have begn prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') as amended from time to time, notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were approved for issue by the
Company’s Board of Directors on 15" May 2024.

b. Functional and presentation currency

Itemns included in these Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The
consolidated Ind AS financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off'to the nearest millions, up to two places of decimal,
unless otherwise indicated. Amounts having absolute value of less than INR 10,000 have been rounded and
are presented as INR 0.00 million in these Ind AS financial statements.

a. Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
items:

Items Measurement basis

Investments, Derivative instruments Fair value

b.  Use of estimates and judgments

The estimates used in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements of each year presented are
continuously evaluated by the Group and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and
factors (including expectations of future events), that the Group believes to be reasonable under the existing
circumstances, The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or
that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.
Although the Group regularly assesses these estimates, actual results could differ from these estimates - even




Nureca Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

if the assumptions underlying such estimates were reasonable when made, ifthese results differ from historical
experience or other assumptions do not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are
recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements in the period in which they become known.

used in preparation of these financial Statements are prudent and reasonable. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
that are beyond the control of the Group.

Significant judgements
Determining lease term of contract for duration of lease (refer note 4)

Significant estimates

- Recoverability of deferred taxes (refer note. 2.12 or 31d)

be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management Jjudgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

- Defined benefit plans (refer note. 2.13 and 34)

include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive
to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

- Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (refer note 2.4 and 3a)

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period. At the end of the current reporting period, the management determined that the useful lives of property,

- Inventory Obsolescence Provision

The Group reviews the write-down of inventories to net realizable value and also provision for obsolescence
and slow moving inventory as at year end.

The factors that the Group considers in determining the provision for slow moving, obsolete and other non-
saleable inventory include planned product discontinuances, price changes, ageing of inventory and
introduction of competitive new products, to the extent each of these factors impact the Company’s business

- Rightto recover return goods

Provision for sale return has been estimated based on the past history of sales return and actua] sales return
post year end. (refer section 2.9 Revenue Recognition for right of return para II for detail)

A

-




Nureca Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

¢. Current vs non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

e Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
e Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
* Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other assets as non-current.
A liability is treated as current when:
¢ Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
» Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

® There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and Habilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

d.  Measurement of fair values

The Group has an established control framework with respect to measurement of fair values. This includes
the top management division which is responsible for overseeing all significant fair value measurements,
including Level 3 fair values. The top management division regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs
and valuation adjustments. If third party information, is used to measure fair values, then the top management
division assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations
meet the requirement of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations
should be classified.

Significant valuation issues, if any are reported to the Company’s board of directors.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is catcgoriscd in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Group recognises transfcrs between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the changes have occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in measuring

A& of\ Lf,gﬁ,
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Nureca Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

fair values used in preparing these consolidated financial statements is included in the note 37.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses, other comprehensive income and
cash flows of the Holding Company with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and
expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognized in the
Consolidated Financial Statements at the acquisition date.

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the Holding Company's investment in each subsidiary and
the Holding Company’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains
how to account for any related goodwill.

(¢) Eliminate in full intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between entities of the Group (profits or losses resulting from intra group transactions
that are recognized in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intra group
losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Appropriate adjustments for deferred taxes are made for temporary differences that arise from the
elimination of unrealized profits and losses from intra group transactions or undistributed earnings of
Group’s entity included in consolidated Profit & Loss, if any.

Foreign operations

Revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the year. All assets and liabilities
are converted at rates prevailing at the end of the year. Any exchange difference arising on consolidation
is recognized in the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (FCTR).

The Consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for
like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

The carrying amount of the Company’s investment in subsidiaries is offset (eliminated) against the
Company’s portion of equity in subsidiaries.

The detail of consolidated entity as follows:

Name of subsidiary Country of Percentage of ownership
incorporation As at As at
31 March 2024| 31 March 2023
Nureca Inc. USA 100% 100%
Nureca Healthcare Private Limited India 100% 100%
Nureca Technologies Private Limited | India 100% 100%

2.3 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Trade receivables issued are initially recognised when
they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

a. Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing components which is
initially measured at the transaction price.) is recognised initially at fair value ‘plus or minus
transaction cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than




Nureca Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

financial assets at fair value through profit and loss). Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) are
recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Classification and subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- Amortised cost;
- FVOCI - equity investment; or
-FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the year the
Group changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual

cash flows; and
— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All mutual fund investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value in consolidated Financial
Statements

All Derivatives- Futures & Options are carried as Financial Assets when the fair value is positive and
as Financial Liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of derivatives are taken directly to Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recirring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the other comprehensive j income (“OCT’). There is
no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment.
However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method
(‘EIR’). The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest

income, are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI
and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

\’%




Nureca Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its Statement of Balance
Sheet but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the
transferred assets are not derecognized.

b. Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The Group has not designated any financial liabilitjes at FVTPL.

(ii) Financial liabilities at amortized cost
After initial recognition, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Interest expense is recognized

in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or Joss on derecognition is also recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢. Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition, After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only
if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.

d. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the
Statement of Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable contractual legal right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

24 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and Initial Measurement '

Property, plant and equipment is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of each ilem can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at their cost.




Nureca Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Cost of asset includes:

a) Purchase price, net of any trade discounts and rebates;

b) Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets which incurred in bringing asset to its
working condition for the intended use; and

Subsequent measurenment

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized ifit is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and cost of the expenditure
can be measured reliably. .

Depreciation and useful lives

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as specified in schedule II of the Companies act, 2013,

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the year is charged
on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment is depreciated separately if the cost of part is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of that part is different from the useful
life of remaining asset.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Other intangible assets, including those acquired by the Company in a business combination and have
finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment

losses.
Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally
generated assets, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives
using the straight-line method and is included in depreciation and amortisation expense in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows

s Software - 3years
e Mobile application - 10 years

A




Nureca Limited =
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

2.6

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are

recognised as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate;

* The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use
or sale

* Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

* How the asset will generate future economic benefits

* The availability of resources to complete the asset 4

* The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset
begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period
of expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. During the period of
development, the asset is tested for impairment annually

Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Leases in which the Group is a lessee

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings The Group, at the inception of a
contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or not. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the tight to control the use of an identified asset for a time in exchange for a consideration.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets
is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term
or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the
same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment
whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if
any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is
subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability,
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the}can'ying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
The Group recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of
modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further
reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of the re-
measurement in statement of profit and loss.
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2.7

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to

terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Group
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there
is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset bas been reduced to zero. The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of
investment property in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in “financial liabilities® in the
statement of financial position.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The Group
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss
over the lease term.

Impairment

a. Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss on financial assets measured at amortised
cost. At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit- impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Evidence that the financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
- the breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;
- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider

otherwise;
- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation; or
- the disappearance of active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the
following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

Measurement of expected credit losses
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applics expected credit loss (CCL) model lor measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:;

- Financial assets that are measured at amortized cost e,e- its, trade receivables and bank

halance,
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2.8

- Fin;ncial assets that are measured as at FVTOCI

- Lease receivables under Ind AS 116

- Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables,

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. difference between the cash flow due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flow that the Group expects to recejve). :

Presentation of ﬂlgwance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at the amortised cost is deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

b Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group’s non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows (i.e. corporate assets) are
grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs,

Net realizable value is the estimated sel ling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net
realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis. Provision | e for slow moving inventory on
case-to-case basis, la
Z
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2.9 Foreign currency transactions
Initial recognition

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Companies in the group
at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Measurement at the reporting date

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical
cost in a foreign cwrrency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange
differences on restatement/settiement of all monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

2.10 Revenue recognition

Under Ind AS 115, the Group recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was satisfied, i.e.
when ‘control' of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were transferred to the
customer.

Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as follows:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Contract liability is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized.

L Sale of products

Revenue from sale of products is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred
to the customer at the time of shipment to or receipt of goods by the customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The Group has concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements as it typically controls the
goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer, The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the
associdted uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

The goods and service tax (GST) is not received by the Group on its own account. Rather, it is tax
collected on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue, Additionally amount
disclosed as revenue are excluding taxes and net of return rebate, allowance etc.

The payment terms varies from customer to customer as per contract which includes advance payments
and credit terms in upto 30 to 40 days, based on customary business practices.
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y/é Contract balances

Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities: A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a confract
liability is recognized when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

b/ Right of return

Group provides a customer with a right to return in case of any defects or on grounds of quality. The
Group uses the expected value method to estimate the goods that will not be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled. The
requirements in Ind AS 115 on constraining'estimates of variable consideration are also applied in order
to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction price. For
goods that are expected to be retumed, instead of revenue, the Group recognizes a refund liability. A
right of return asset and corresponding adjustment to change in inventory is also recognized for the
right to recover products from a customer.

The Group has applied the practical expedient under Ind AS 115 for incremental cost of obtaining a
contract and has recognized such cost as an expense when incurred if the amortization period of the
asset is one year or less.

2.11 Recognition of dividend, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Group’s right to receive payment
is established

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective jnterest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability,
However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset, If
the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

2.12 Taxes
a) Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current tax is determined as the tax
payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in accordance with relevant tax
regulations. Current tax is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to
items recognized outside profit or loss in which case it is recognized outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income (“OCI’) or in equity). Current tax items arc recognized in relation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes current tax payable where appropriate,
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Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items
recognized outside profit or loss, in which case is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying

transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the

deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

2.13 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, and other benefits falling due
wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits
and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss in in the
period in which the eniployee renders the related services.

a) Post-employment benefits

* Defined Contribution Plan: A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further

amounts.

The Group makes specified monthly contribution to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner
towards provident fund and employee state insurance scheme (‘ESI’) which is a defined contribution
plan. The Group’s contribution is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during
the year in which the employee renders the related service.

e Defined Benefit Plan: A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
confribution plan. Under such plan, the obligation for any benefits remains with the Group. The
Group’s liability towards gratuity is in the nature of defined benefit plan.

The Group has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible
employees. The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while
in employment or on termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employee’s
salary and the tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service.

The liability in respect of gratuity is accrued in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial -
~ valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
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The Group’s net obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows using
a discount rate based on the market yield on government securities of a maturity period equivalent to
the weighted average maturity profile of the defined benefit obligations at each reporting date.

Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is recognized in other comprehensive income
and is reflected in retained earnings and the same is not eligible to be reclassified to Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Defined benefit costs comprising current service cost, past service cost, interest cost and gains or
losses on settlements are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as employee benefits expense.
Gains or losses on settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognized when the settlement occurs.
Past service cost is recognized as expense at the earlier of the plan amendment or curtailment and
when the Group recognizes related restructuring costs or termination benefits.

b) Other employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the year
in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of
the obligation as at the Balance Sheet date . The cost of providing benefits is measured on the basis of
an annual independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at each balance sheet
date. Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they
arise. Long term employee benefit costs comprising current service cost, interest cost and gains or
losses on curtailments and settlements, re-measurements including actuarial gains and losses are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as employee benefit expenses.

2.14 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contract is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the company
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the contract. The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract
and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the group
recognises any impairment loss on assets associated.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that may
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying eco c fits or the amount of
ut probably q ying 0% i
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2.15

2.16

2.17

such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is possible obligation or a i)resent obligation
in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no

provision or disclosure is made.
These are reviewed at each financial reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
Contingent assets

Contingent asset is not recognised in consolidated financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually
certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognized.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may
eam revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any
of the Group’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available, All operating
segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their
performance. -

The business of the Group falls within a single line of business i.e. business of home healthcare and
wellness products. All other activities of the Group revolve around its main business.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand, demand deposits held with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to'an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Statement of cash flows

Statement of cash flows is made using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of non-cash nature, any deferral accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expense associated with investing or financing of cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, financing and investing activities of the Group are segregated.

2.18 Earnings per share

Basic eamings/(loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss) for the year attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events of
bonus issue and share split. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/ (loss) per share, the net
profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares
been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstand ing equity shares),
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the year, unless issued at
a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each year presented.
The number of equity shares and potential dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all
years presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the
approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.
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2.18

2.19

Equity

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity shares are recognised as a deduction from
equity. Income tax relating to transaction costs of an equity transaction is accounted for in accordance
with Ind AS 12.

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate A ffairs ('"MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standard or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Company.

Au




wamdinbs puw areyd ‘Kyadasd

HINI JO 1500 puraIp AY) 58 S0jus Surdues jay) 351 e ' Jyyo snojaad ap s su pamsean 4607 Tudy [0 e se pozm 953X 3 I pus drnba pua wropd “fedaxd jo W) A |8 Jo anms Furdue A M MU0 of PI0[2 sep dnary aq 'Sy pup jo nonsuw) ug
3 = - = TCF = — ITF Ll
- = . = - [l unpros
= = e s Tr = (142 1) uonERl o
_~
JQ FTOT FUTN I £ToTdy 1 CTOLquT I rozpdy §
sy aopeztepde) eAEppY ey vy aopemende) coonEpY wey wnnapeg

Ju2wdoy3A2p Japon 12ew REIan)] - pg Itay

T B - = B v ST N o] TeaTal]

moL ueal g ovg aoy sreal -7 ueal z-1 am3f | ung) W EZOT JUE € 105y,
J0 oA 05} QIALT W ey

T T aslaa ]

[T - - ¥ [ 4 S0 v Bafeld 1
Ueal coeg gy | mval o1 WEAT T | J%aR | umy) wa
R TR popsd 5] A W TOEY $20Z UMW IE 18 6y

sraudad w ios jmyde) - 3¢ 3joN

{513 I8t SLC . 53 50 Wil &1 - HE TLrE (Y
90'ST e wE 19z 180 '8 - [y} STH (peresantd Aftwann] uooedds apgo
Wl 10 14 - z€0 10 oyl = 4] &' arewyos
CLOTRUSW IE  ZZOZ9NSW I€  |€I0TqueW If zzozmdy 1 ETOT N If zrozmidy T
ey ey Ty wrrodag avakag)aogadieyy sy 1= ey qevodag Uy mry
CECTRET TEN RY W oY PAIRAEnIY TOnow s S GIeD Haa) — L ue K
[1511 [{Ed %] - 91T [ WEOL = * FRGL (L
SETT 90ST 1¢] we we L13:14 . ¥ 1314 gl dypn)) weneipdde sjsqe
750 L0L sL0 - 50 4] o1 - . or'l AmMyos
PIOZRUW [E  CZ0T0MEW EC 707 QUK I czozmdy | POz QUK T¢ cTozdy |
sy wry oy stsodng awal o) I2ivy) Wy e 1y qoodeg PRy Iy
AN DIVRUCIDE PIjEjamnlyy JUNOIAE AMALTD T annypeg
nane y@duna -q¢ 30N
STIT (1% I5ST m (13 | i L6597 W050) SET T9CF [y
9%y 686 05 . B3 88T wn - = [TRT] IPHPA
(144 6€ 9Tl . LoT 610 15§ . €51 e Ay g wejg
Lz STy e (zg'0) 91 e w5 {090 o LT9 seyndima)
L0C 9TE [\[x4 - 86'0 wi( Lr's - 6L°0 9 wexadinbo o110
[14] L6'8 oz - ut 660 seol - 660 96'6 Sunp; pre amypung
$39 0L I - %0 £20 94'L - 1o sT'L mausaaqidu) pioyasery
CTOZQUSW WIE ZZOZQUWWIE  |£20Z QU= Wi TzoTMLdy | £T07 QU PIE worpdy 1
185y wry nry Amodeq Jrakaqaggadiegy ey mry qmodag SAUPPY v
IO 3N ﬂ%ﬂm —_ngl_=5=uu< Tanoas uﬂ. D A EI—:!.«.—I&
(TG SEIE 6 000 (a3 E9S1 Tise oo I8 69r LTS
T 59 L - ot 10§ BEl = ®Lp [Ty EIETEy
109 STk 114 - 1 241 98 - e 5 Ay 3wl
01 [Ag4 Lo's - €el e 609 . Lre 1433 sw)hooy
91T e ser - $60 or't 15§ . L} s waudmba 210
I STR x4+ (000} 1291 (a4 Leor (100) (o] SE0l UMY PUT NN
96’ S8 9 00z - 680 491 96°L a = 9L msanaaduy pjoyase]
FLOTRUNN IE  CTOTYUSW ISIE ($20Z QSN IE €20z Hdy | FTOZ QS I ezozdy 1
w5y sy sy nmolag 4wk g a0p3dieg)  ju iy oy Resodag SIOPPV sy
WIRG 1IN Gaipulp Py WO TS B0 = swnopaug|

nzudywba pae jomd “Apadasg - og 30y

(Pjois aspmsao £53{un ‘vojlfiu YN 4 junoury)
PTOZ JUSA 15 PIPO22NaE I0) uamu)s jew g pagepgoso]) 2) 0) 520N
Payun 832Ny



Nureca Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financinl S
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise siated)

for year ended 31 March 2024

Note 4 - Right-oF-use ssets
The Group has entered into agr

office and

for leasing

P

a. Information ebout leases for which the Group is a lessee is presented below :

on lease The leases typically run for a period of 1-9 years with lock in term of 3 years

Right-oFuse assety As at As gt
31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Balance as at beginning of the year 29.06 41,19
Additions - -
Deprecietion for the year (1214} (12.13)
Balance 83 at end of the year 16,92 29,06
b The aggregats depreciation expense on Right-of-use assets is included under dep expense in the S| of Profit and Loss.
c. Set out below are the camying of lease liabilities and the during the year :
Lense linbilities included in the balance sheet Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current 5.53 12.22
Non- current 14.79 20.32
Totsl 2032 32.54
— e
Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Bulance a3 at beginning of the yesr 3254 43.29
Additions - -
Acereditation of interest 231 326
Payment of lease linbilities (14.53) (i4.01)
Balance as at end ol the year 2031 3154
d. Asat year end date, the Group is not exposed to future cashflows for ion / oplions, residual value guarantees and leeses not commenced to which lessee is cormmitted.
¢ The table below provides details regarding the ] aof lease liabilities on an indiscounted basis:
Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted cash flows Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Less than one year 7.01 14.53
After one year but not longer than three years 10,45 1259
More than three years 6.76 11.63
Total 24.22 38.75
==

f. The Group does not face liquidity risk with regard 1o its lense liabilities as the current assets are sufficient 1o meet the obligations related 1o lease lisbilities as and when they fall due.
& The Group has also taken certain office premises and office equipment on lease with contract terms within one year. These leases are short-term and/or leases of low-value items. The Group hes elected not 10 recognize
right-of-use-assets and lease linbilities for these leases. The expenses relating to short-term leases and /or leases of low-value items has been epplied have baen charged to the Statement of Profit and loss.

d in the S of Profit and Loss:

h. The table below pi details di

Expenses relating to short-term leases and/or Jeases of low-value items
Interest on fease liabilitics
Depreciation expense
Total
. The following are the amounts recognized in sfatement of cash flows:

Total cash outflow for leases including short term leases/leases of low-value item and varisble lease psyments

Note 5-Investments
Current Investments
In Other Companies (quoted investment at foir value}
2000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Marico Ltd (face value INR- 1 each)
13000 (31 March 2023 Nil) shere of Restaurant Brands Asia Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
4000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Sona BLW Precision Forgings Ltd (face value INR- 10 each)
1600 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Aavas Financiers Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
114 (31 March 2023 Nit) share of Aarti Indurstries Ltd (face value INR- 5 each)
864 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Aditya Birla Capilal Ltd (face value INR- 10 each)
30 (31 March 2023 Nil) shere of Akzo Nobe! India Ltd (face value INR- 10 each)
15 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Alkem Laboratories Lid (face value INR- 2 cach)
106 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Axis Bank Ltd (face value INR- 2 each)
222 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Bharti Airtel Pp Limited (facc value INR- 5 each)
51 (31 March 2023 Nil) shere of Bitla Corporation Ltd (face value INR- 10 each)
114 (31 Masch 2023 Nil) share of HCL Technologies Lid (face value INR- 2 each)
128 (31 March 2023 Nil) shere of HDFC Bank Ltd (face value INR- | each)
1017 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of IDFC Ltd (face value INR- 10 each)
213 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of India Infoline Finance Limited (face value INR- 2 each)
126 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of IndusInd Bank Lid (face value INR- 10 each)
278 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Jindal Stainless Ltd (face value INR- 2 each)
193 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Jindal Steel And Power Lid (face value INR- 1 each)
51 (31 Mareh 2023 Nil) share of Larsen And Toubro Ltd (face value INR- 2 each)
28 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Mastek Ltd (foce value INR- 5 each)
193 (31 March 2023 Ni)) share of Max Finencial Services L1d (face value INR- 2 each)
468 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of National Thermal Power Corporation Ltd (face value INR- 10 each)
21 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Polycab Indir Ltd (face value INR- 10 each)
253 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of State Bank OFIndin (face value INR- 1 vsth)
119 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd (face value INR- 1 each)
189 (31 March 2023 Nif) share of Ambuja Cements Ltd (face velue INR- 2 each)
29 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Avenue Supermarts Limiled (face value INR- 10 each)
106 (31 March 2023 units share Bharat Forge Ltd (face value INR- 2 in esch)

A

For the year ended
31 March 2024

849
231
12.14

For the year ended
31 March 2023

10.24
3.26
12.13

22.94
=

25.63

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

23,02

24.25
=

0.99
132
282
211
0.08
0.15
0.07
0.07
011

018
0.07
018
0,19
a1l
0.07
0.20
0.19
0.16
019
0.07
0.19
0.16
0.11
019
0.19
0.12
0.13
0.12




Nureca Limited
Notes to the C lidated Fi inl for year ended 31 March 2024

(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise siated)

286 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Bharti Airtel Ltd (face value INR- 5 each)
109 (31 March 2023 Nil) shere of Brigade Enterprises Ltd (face value INR- 10 each)
70 (31 March 2023 Nil) shace of Coromandel Intemational Lid (face vaiue INR- | each)
152 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of DLF Ltd (face value INR- 2 each)
1300 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Equitas Small Finance Bank Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
24 (31 March 2023 Ni}) share of HDFC Assct Mansgement Company Lid (face value INR- 5 each)
244 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Hind| Petroleum Corporntion (face value INR- 10 each)
310 (31 March 2023 Nif) share of ICICI Bank Ltd (face value INR- 2 each)
236 (31 March 2023 Nif) share of Indien Bank (face value INR- 10 each)
75 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of IndusInd Bank Ltd (face value INR- 10 each)
45 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of InterGlobe Avistion Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
246 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Jindal Stee! and Power Lid (face value INR- 2 each)
89 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Larsen & Toubro Ltd (face value INR- 2 each)
101 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Medplus Health Services Limited (face value INR- 2 each)
286 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of NTPC Ltd (face value INR- 10 each)
445 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Power Finance Corporation Ltd (face value INR- 10 each)
736 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of dhena Moth I i (face value INR- 1 each)
373 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Sarda Energy and Mincrals Ltd (face value INR- 1 each)
75 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Sobha Developers Ltd (face value INR- 10 each)
491 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of State Bank of India (face value INR- 1 each)
56 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of TVS Motor Company Ltd (face value INR- 1 each)
75 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Tata Chemicals Lid (face value INR- 10 each)
185 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Tata Stzel Ltd (face value INR- 1 each)
357 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Bank Of Baroda (face value INR- 2 each)
127 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Godawari Power and Ispat Ltd (face value INR- 5 each)
184 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Jindal Stainless Ltd (face value INR- 2 each)
202 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Apollo Tyres Ltd (face value INR- 1 each)
74 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Tata Communications Lid (face value INR- 10 each)
403 (31 March 2023 Nif) share of Vardhman Textiles Lid (face value INR- 2 each)
1200 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Jio Financial Services Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
1000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Tata Chemicals Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
2000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Infosys Limited (face value INR- 5 each)
~11000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Tata Consultancy Services Limited (face value INR- 1 each)
5500 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Tech Mahindra Limited (face vaJue INR- 5 each)
150000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Yes Bank Limited (face value INR- 2 each)
2200 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Indiamart Intermesh Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
2000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Adani Ports And Special Economic Zane Limited (face value INR- 2 cach)
2400 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Indigo Paints Limited (face value INR- 10 each}
1 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Jubilant Foodwurks Limited (face value INR- 2 each)
BOO (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Gland Pharma Limited (face value INR- 1 each)
7700 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Star Health And Allied Insurance Company Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
5400 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Aavas Financiers Limited (face value INR- 10 each}
3000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Metropalis Healthcare Limited (face value INR- 2 each)
25000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Aditya Birla Capital Limited (face value INR- 10 cach)
2000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Restaurant Brands Asia Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
496 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Vaibhav Global Limited (face value INR- 2 each)
1500 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Whirlpool Of India Limiled (face value INR- 10 each)
46000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Indisbulls Housing Finance Limited (face value INR- 2 each)
32000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Bank Of India (face value INR- 10 each)
6000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Alembic Limited (face value INR- 2 each)
15000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Steel Authority Of India Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
700 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of PI Industries Limited (face value INR- 1 each)
10000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Wipro Limited (face value INR- 2 ench)
900 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of LT Mindtree Limited (face value INR- 1 each)
85000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Union Bank OF India (face value INR- 10 each)
12000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Zensar Technologies Limited (face value INR- 2 each)
3000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Aarti Drugs Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
5000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Thyrocare Technologies Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
11758 (31 March 2023 Nil) shere of Hikal Limited (face value INR- 2 each)
500 (31 Masch 2023 Nil) share of Balkrishna Industries Limited {face value INR- 2 each)
615 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of V-Mari Retail Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
23000 (31 March 2023 Nif) share of Snowman Logistics Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
2200 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Sasken Technologics Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
1000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Ujjivan Small Finance Bank Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
12000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Csb Bank Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
24250 (31 March 2023 Nif) shere of Adani Power Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
1100 (31 March 2023 Nil) thare of Aduni Total Gas Limited (face value INR- | each)
10000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Indien Energy Exchenge Limited (face value INR- 1 each)
10000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of City Union Bank Limited (face value INR- 1 each)
1300 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Coforge Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
400 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Piramal Enterprises Limited (face value INR- 2 cach)
3000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Chambal Fenilisers And Chemicals Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
7000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of HFCL Limited (foce value INR- 1 each)
150000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Rattanindia Power Limited (face value TNR- 10 each)
10000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Punjab Natioral Bank (face value INR- 2 each)
600 {31 March 2023 Nif) chare of Computer Age Management Services Limited {face value INR- 10 cach)
9495 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Birlusoft Limited (face value INR- 2 each)
200 (31 March 2023 Nil) thare of Persistent Systems Limited (face value TNR- 10 each)
17000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Tota Steel Limited (face value INR- 1 each)
2600 (31 Masch 2023 Nil) share of Central Depository Services (India) Limited (face valus INR- 10 each)
2400 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
2000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of MMTC Limited (face valus INR- 1 each)
5045 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Take Solutions Limited (face value INR- 1 each)
8000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of DCB Bonk Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
600 (31 Mareh 2023 Nil) shere of Century Plybourds {Indie) Ltd. (face value INR- | cach)
400 (31 March 2023 M) share of Aurchindo Pharma Limited (face value INR- | esch)

2000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Indian Railway Calering And Towsism Corporation Limited (face value INR- 2 each)

21000 (31 Masch 2023 N} share of Gail (Indie) Limited (face value INR- 10 each)

20100 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Jaiprekash Power Ventures Limited (face value INR- 10 each)
600 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Hindalco Industries Limited (face value INR- 1 each)

50 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Biocon Limited (face value INK- 5 cach)

4000 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of LJFC First Bank Limited (face value INR- 10 each)

At

035
0.10
0.08
0.14
012
0,09
0.12
0.34
012
0.12
0.16
0.21
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017
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037
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013
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Nurecs Limited
Notes to the C: Jid, i ial S for year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

= Investment in Mutual Fund (at fair value fhrough profit and loss)
Nil (31 March 2023 : 74,698,12 } Units in ICICI Pru Savings Fund -Direct
8,08,160.46 (31 March 2023 : 8,08,160.46 ) Units in ICICI Pru Short Term Fund -Direct Plan- Growth
3,03,848 (31 March 2023 : 3,03,848 ) Units in ICICI Prudential Medium Term Bond Fund - Direct Plan - Growth
1,75,104.81 (31 March 2023 : 1,75,104.81 ) Units in ICICI Pru Equity- Arbitrage Fund - Direct
497.44 (31 March 2023 : Nil ) Units in ICICI Prudential Nifty IT Index Fund - Direct Plan - Growth
38771778 (31 March 2023 : Nil ) Units in ICICI Prudential Technology Fund - Direct Plan - Growth
Nil (31 March 2023 : 6,859.78) Units in ICICI Pru Liquid Fund
1,64,492.52 (31 March 2023 : Nil) Units in ICICI Prudential Balanced Advantage Fund - Direct Plan - Growth
15,49,989.67 (31 March 2023 : Nil) Units in Tata Digital India Fund Direct Plan Growth
Nil (31 March 2023 : 8,01,918.36 ) Units in SBI Short Term Debt Fund-Direct2
2921648 13 (31 March 2023 : Nil ) Units in SBI Short Term Debt Fund-Direct
Nil (31 March 2023 : 6,244.04 ) Units in SBI Nifty Index Fund
301.11 (31 March 2023 : 301.11 ) Units in SBI Gold fund Direct Plan
1,07,057.98 (31 March 2023 : 1,07,057.98) Units in Kotak Equity- Arbitrage Fund - Direct
29,470.14 (31 March 2023 : 11,026.59) Units in Kotak Corporate Bond Fund - Direct
12,58,277.32 (31 March 2023 : 3,94,011 ) Units in Kotak Saving fund Direct Plan
696.10 (31 March 2023 : 6,995.33) Ubits in Kolak Low Duration Fund-Direct
Nil (31 March 2023 : 41,423,47) Units in HDFC Low Duration Fund-Direct - Growth Option
65,32,099.82 (31 March 2023 : Nil ) Units in HDFC Banking and Financial Services Fund Direcl Growth
23,10,606.11 (31 March 2023 : 23,10,606.11 ) Units in HDFC Banking And PSU Debt Fund-Direct
Nil (31 March 2023 : 5,10,376.18 ) Units in Navi US Total Stock Market
110 66 (31 March 2023 : 110.66 ) Units in Canara Robeto Blue Chip
180.56 (31 March 2023 : 180.56 ) Units in PGIM India Flexi Cap Fund Direct

1,27,12,375.41 (31 March 2023 : 1,27,12,375,41 ) Units in Edelweiss Mutual Fund - Bharat Bond FOF Direct Plan

33,751 (31 March 2023 : Nil ) Units in HDFC Large And Mid Cap Fund - Direct Plen
2,19,114 (31 March 2023 ; Nil ) Units in HDFC Large And Mid Cap Fund - Direct Plan
27,35,686 (31 March 2023 : Nil ) Units in Navi NASDAQ 100 Fund Of Fund - Direct Plan
22,879 (31 March 2023 : Nil ) Units in Quant Active Fund - Direct Plan

3,62,614 (31 March 2023 : Nil } Units in Quant Infrastructure Fund - Direct Plan

19,810 (31 March 2023 : Nil ) Units in Quant Small Cap Fund - Direct Plan

52,49,929 (31 March 2023 : Nit } Units in Quant Teck Fund - Direct Plan

7,92,258 (31 March 2023 : Nil ) Unils in Tata Digital India Fund - Direct Plan

4,13,331 (31 March 2023 : Nil } Unils in Tata Digital India Fund - Direct Plan

1240 (31 March 2023 Nii) share of Nifty 1D Rate Liguid ETF

150 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of Prudential Mutual Fund - ICICI Prudentiel Liquid ETF
95100 (31 March 2023 Nil) share of India ETF Nifty PSU Bank Becs

Agzregate book value of quoled investments

Aggregate market value of quoted investments
Aggregate value of unquoted investments

Aggregate value of impaj in value of t i

- 34,55

- 43.94

1336 1235

5.86 542
0.01 -
73.35 -

= 49.55
nmn -
15.07 -

= 8328
B9.64 .

- 0.98

- 0.01

.89 3.59

104.18 96.55

* 15.00

. 3650

& 218
94.67 =

49.86 46.26

- 532

. 0,01

- 0.01

- 155.35
10.03 -
9.44 -
37.10 -
15.08 -
14.65 -
4.86 -
62.00 -
38.17 -
19.91 -
1.24 -
0.15 =

139

93633 590.85

53633 590,85

936,33 59085



Nureca Limited
Notes to the Ci lidated Fi ial § for year ended 31 March 2024

(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise siated)

Note 6 - Other financial assets Asat As at
31 Merch 2024 31 March 2023
Non-current
Security deposits 292 289
Bank deposils - 1236
292 7525
As at As sl
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current
Bank deposits due within twelve months 49.56 19.50
Security deposils 0.02 0.02
Receivable from online marketplace portals** 2657 21.46
Advance given to broker for purchase of shares 713 -
. . A3.25 4038,
**Represent receivable in relation to sale made through online marketplace by business partner.
Note 7~Other tax asset (net) As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(a) Non-Current
Advance income-1ax (net of provision amaunting to INR Nil( 31 March 2023 156.11 million)) - 11.09
(b) Current
Advance income-tax - 932
= 2041
Note 8 - Inveotories As at Asat
(At lower of cost and net realizable value) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Raw materials 23.78 17.08
Stock-in-trade™# 263.80 32748
Finished goods 0.93 021
308.51 344.77
3) The above figure of inventory is net of write down of inventory cost to net realisable value during the year amounting to INR 8.76 millions (31 March 2023 INR 3.60 millions).
b)The above total i y is net of provision for ob & Slow moving of INR 3.55 millions (31 March 2023 INR 1.15 millions)
Notes:
*Includes goods-in-transit 201 3272
# Include stores & spares amounting to INR 8.41 million (31 March 2023 INR 9.22 million) and packing & stock amounting of INR 1.97 million (31 March 2023 INR 7.34 million)
Note 9 - Trade receivables Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
From others 16.15 4320
Less: expected credit loss allowance - (0.25)
1615 1235,
Break-up of trade receivabl
Trade vabl idered good - d 1615 4295
Trade receivables - credit im paired 0125
16.15 43.20
Less: loss allowance
Trade receivables - credit im paired - 025
Trade receivables net 16,15 42,95

Trade receivables apeing schedale

Undisputed trade receivables- considered good - 0.10 15.96

eriod from due date of payments

0.09

As st March 31, 2024 Outstanding for the fallowin
upbilled not due |< 6| 6 montbs to| 1 yearto2 |2year103 | >3 yeers | Total Net
months years years receivobl

16.15

Undisputed trade receivable which heve significant -
|increase in eredit fisk -

Undisputed trade receivables- credit impaired - =

Disputed trade receivables- considered good - - =
Disputed trade receivable which have significant -

increase in credil risk 5 -

Disputed trade receivables- credit im paired - -

Total - 0.10 15.96

0.09

16.18




Nureca Limited
Notes to the C lidated Fi
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

for year ended 31 March 2024

As at March 31, 2023 Outstandiog for the following peried from due date of payments
unbilled not due |< 6| 6 months lo| 1 yearto2 |2yearto3 |>3years | Totnl Net
months 1 year years years receivabl
3
Undisputed trade rectivables- considered good - 41,15 1.52 0.01 0.27 = E 4295
Undisputed trade receivable which have significant . B
Increase in credit risk = - - - - -
- - 020 003 - - 0.25
Disputed trade receivable which have significant i - ~
Increase in credit sisk - - - -
- 41.15 152 021 032 - = 4330
M tia d credit loss ali of trade receivable As al Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance al the beginning of the year 025 -
Balance written of during the year (0.25) -
Additions during the year - 025
Balance at the end of the year - 028
As at As at

Note 10- Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with bank
- In current accounts
- Fixed deposits with oniginal maturity upto three months

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the lollowing:
Balances with bank:

- In current accounts

-Fixed deposits with original maturity upto three months

Note 11 - Other bank balances

Bank depasits with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months
Balance jn unclaimed dividend accounts

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

*Includes restricied deposits of Rs. 299.26 (31 March 2023 : Rs. 299.26 ) pledged &s security for Jetter of credit and bank guarantee.

Note 12 - Other current assets

Balances with govemment authoritics
Prepaid expenses

CSR Asset

Advances 1o suppliers

Expenses recoverable from related parties
Right to recover retumed goods

13.12 504
127.50 -
106 500

13.12 5.04
127.50 -
140.62 504

Asat As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
31230 704.49
0.12 013
31242 704.62
==
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
106.51 9732
637 5.62
132 8.7)
74 12.10
221 -
246 3.35
128.61 127,10




Nureca Limited
Notes to the C li Fi ial § for year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Nate 13 - Equity share capital
Authorized
11,000,000 {31 March 2023: 11,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 cach 110.00 110.00
110.00 110,00
—_—
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
10,000,175 (31 March 2023: 10,000,175) equity sharcs of INR 10 each fully paid up 100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
—
a)  Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
As per the dum of iation, the Group's authorized share capital consist of equity shares. All equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Group's residunl assets.
The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as deciared from time to time. Sharcholders arc entitled to one vote per equity share held in the Group. On winding up of the Group, the holders of
equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Group, ining after distribution of all p ial in proportion to the number of equity shares held.
b)  Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning snd end of the reporting year:
As st 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
No, of shares Amount No. ol shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,00,00,175 100.00 1,00,00,175 100.00
Balance at the end of the year 1,00.00,175 100,00 1,00,00,175 100.00
€)  Details of shareholders holding more than § percent equity shares in the Group:
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
% holding in % holding in
No. of Shares (he clasa No. of Shares s caiig
Payal Goyal 21,98,427 27.98 27,98,427 27,98
Saurabh Goyel 31,49,203 3149 34.99.979 35.00
59.47,630 59.48 61.98.406 62,98
d)  Aggregatc number of shares allotted or fully paid up till the balance sheet date pursuant to contract without payment received in cash and/or by way of fully paid bonus shares
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Numbers of shares  Numbers of shares Numbers of shares Numbers of shares Numbers of shares
Shares allotted as per app! i scheme of ar - - - 10,00,000 -
Bonus shares issued - 2 - 60.00,000 -
Note:- As per approvil of Honourabl ional Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for the scheme of amangement (Scheme') emang Nectar Biopharma Private Limited (demerged company) and Nureca
Private Limited (resulling pany) and their respective shareholders and creditors under section 230 10 232 and other epplicable provisions of the Comp ies Act 2013, with effect from appointed date
of 1 April 2019, the Company had cancelled 10,000 shares and issued 1,000,000 shares for consideration other then cash on 10 June 2020.
¢)  Initial public offer
During the year ended 31 march 2021 the Group had made Initial Public Offering of 2,500,175 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each for cash consisting 2,496,675 equity shares to public other than
employees at & price of Rs, 400 per equity share (including a share premiurn of Rs. 390 per equity sharc) and 3,500 equity shares to the employees gt a price of Rs, 380 per equity share (including a
share premium of Rs. 370 per equity shares) sggregating to Rs. 1000.00 million, These equity shares were allotied on 23 February 2021 and the equity share of the Group got listed on the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited (BSE) on 25 February 2021.
)  Promotors Shareholdings
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
S.No. Promoter's name No. ol sbares % of total shares No. of shares % of totsl shares % change during the year
1 Payat Goyal 27,98427 28% 27,98,427 28% 0%
2 Saurabh Goyal 31,49,203 31% 34,99,979 35% 4%
3 Aryan Goyal 3,75,983 % 7 % %
4 Smila Goyal 7 0% 7 0% 0%
5 Nectar Biopharma Private Limited 21 0% 21 % %
Total 63.?;3.641 63.24% 62,98 44) 62.98% 0%

Note 14 - Other equity

As at 31 March As at 31 March 2023

2024
'y Capital reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year (1296} (1296)
Balance at the end of the year (12.96) (12.96)
b Security premium
Balance at the beginning of the year 987.79 987.79
Balance at the end of the year 987,79 88779
& Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 874.06 957,14
Add: Loss for the year (17.94) (82.50)
Add: Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (remeasurement of defined benefit plans, net of tax) 025 {058}
Balance at the end of the year R56.38 874.06
d Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year (0.08) 001
Less: Movement during the year (0 03) (0.09)
Balance at the end of the year __{0.11) (0,08)
Total —L83LI0 Li4831
Nature of reserves
a.  Capital reserve
Capital reserve is on account of the busi bination under control as per the Coust epproved scheme.
b.  Security premium
Securilies premium sccount is used to record the premium on issue of shares, The reserve is ulifized in dance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
¢ Retained earnings
Retained carmings comprises of undistributed eamings afier taxes,
d.  Foreign currency translation reserve
Exct difTe arising on Intion of the foreign operations are recognized in other } income as described in ing policy and accumulated in a separate reserve within
equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or foss when the Group disposes or partially disposes ofFits interest in a foreign operation throu iqujdation, repayment of share capital or

abandonment of all, or part of, that entity.

A0

-




Nureca Limited
Notes to the C lidated Fi ial St for year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stafed)

Note 15 - Borrowings
A. Nou-current borrowings As at As at

Mot 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Secured:
Loan from Bank
Term loan (a) 4.01 -
Total non-current borrowings (including current maturities) . 4.01 -
Less: cumrent maturities of non-current borrowings ®) 0.75 =
326 -
B. Current borrowings Notes Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
- from releted party (refer note 35) (a) 083 0.82
Current meturities of non-current borrowings
-Loan from Bank {Secured) (e) 0.78 -
158 082
Notes:

(8) ‘Term loan from bank amounting to INR 4.01 million (31 March 2023: INR Nil ) carrying interest rate of 8.50% p.s. (31 March 2023: Nil ) is secured by exclusive charge by way of
hypothecation on Car, The loan is repayable in 60 (31 March 2023: Nil) equal monthly instaliments

(b) Inter corporale loan of INR 083 (31 March 2023: INR 0.82) from Nectar Biopharma Private Limited carrying interest rate of 8% (31 March 2023: B%) per annum and are repayable by 30
Seplember 2024.

Nate 16 - Lease Linbilities
Noa Current
Lease liability (refer note 4) 14.79 20.27
14.79 2027
Curreat
Current Jease liability (refer note 4) 553 12.18
5.53 12.18
Note 17 - Provisions As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(») Non-current
Provision for employee benefiis:
Provision for compensated absences 0.78 116
Provision lor gratuity (refer note 34) 898 672
2.76 188
(b} Current
FProvision for employee benefits:
Provision for compensated Bbsences 1.04 208
Provision for grawity (refer note 34) 064 0.22
Lat 230
11,44 10,18
As at As ot
Note 18 - Trade payables 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises # 5.02 291
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises # 46.72 4699
51.74 19!92
Also, the Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in
their pond: with its the Entrep M dum Number as all d after filing of the M Jum. The infc i ding Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

hes been determined to the extent such parties have been identificd on the basis of information available with the Group. In respect of emounts payable to such enterprises as at year end that has
been made in the financial siatements based on information available with the Group.

# Refer note 36
Trade puyables ageing schedule Outstanding for fallowing periods from due date of payment
As at31 March 2024 Unbilled NotDue <1 years lyearto2 2yearto3 >3 years Totsl

vears yeary

Tolal ding dues of micro prises and small phi! . 4,40 0.62 - - - 5.02
Total outslanding dues of credilors other than micro enterprises and small 032 3730 6.92 174 0.44 - 4672
entemrises
Disputed dues of micro ises and small i - - - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than mico enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
Total 032 41.70 154 1.74 0.44 - §1.74

M
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Notes to the C lidated Fi inl S1 for year ended 31 March 2024

{Amount in INR million, unless otherwise staied)
Trade payables agelug schedul O ding for Following periods from due date of pay
As at 31 March 2023 Unbilled NotDue <1 years 1yeario2 >3 years Total
years
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 291 - - - 291
Tow! outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 3230 7.49 6.76 0.44 - 46.99
Disputed dues of micro enlesprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises - - - - - -
Total 3230 10.40 6.76 0.44 = 49.90
Note 19 - Other financial liabilities Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unpeid Dividend 012 0.13
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.30 023
Mark to merket losses on derivative contract 0.20 -
0,62 036
Note 20 - Other current liabilities As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advance from customer 482 349
Statutory liabilities 476 326
Refund liability 3.57 7.20
Payable to employees 9.60 8.64
Others 047 -
2322 22,59
Note 21 - Current tax linbilities (net) As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for tax (net of edvance tax INR 7.11 million (31 March 2023; INR Nil )) 836 0.68
836 ogt




Nureca Limited
Notes 16 the Consolidaled Fi ial
(Amount in INR million, unless atherwise stated)

for year ended 31 March 2024

Nole 22 - Revenue from operations

Sale of products

Noles:
a. Reconciliation of revenue recognized with the contruct price is as follows:
Contrect price
Adjustments for:
- Discounts and rebates
- Refund liability
Revenue recognized

&=

Conf{ract Balances
Advance from customer, which are included in 'other current linbilities’
Refund liability, which ere included in ‘other current liabilities’

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
91928 1,113.23
91938 1,11323
1,003.26 117297
8041 5254
3.57 720
3 KT
@82) (49
Q.57 (1.20)

Contract fiabilities represents amount received from customers ns pef the temms of purchase order to deliver goods anil expected sale retumn from the sale of goods, Once the goods

“The ameunt of rovenue INR 3.02 million {31 Masch 2023 INR 9.23 mullhions) mu@:md in the reponting period was mcluded in the contract liability balince at the beginning of the

are delivered and cantrol s fermed to the same is ad
period
¢ Revenue from sale of products disaggregated by primary geographical market

India
Outside Indin
Total revenue from contracts with customers

o

Timing of revenue recognition:

Product trensferred at a point in time
Products transferred over ime

Revenue from contracts with customery

Note 23 - Other income

Interest income under effective interest method

- on bank deposits

-on lonn given

Exchange gain on foreign exchange fluctuation (net)
Income on unwinding of security deposit

Renta! Income

Fair value changes and net gain/loss on i .
Miscellaneous income

Derivative measured at FVTPL

* Include fair value change of INR 62.80 million (31 March 2023 INR 24.46 million )

Note 24 - Cost of materials consumed

Inventory of mw material at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases of raw materials
Less: Inventory of raw material at the end of the year

Note 25- Purchase of stock-in-trade

Purchese of stock-in-trade

Note 26 - Changes in inventories of siock in trade and finished goods

Opening balance

- Stock-in-trade

- Right 1o recover returned goods
- Finished Goods

Closing balance

- Stock-in-trade

- Right to recover returned goods
- Finished Goods

919.28 1,11297
. 026
$19.28 Lisds,
919.28 1,113.23
519.28 1,113.23
e i
For (he year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
3841 42,16
048 0.02
515 1.83
0.03 0.03
003 0.03
58.68 24.44
2.56 2,54
{0.20) 4
105.14 7105
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
17.08 013
10430 5212
{23.78) (17.08)
97.60 ELHT)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
46470 41242
464.70 412.42
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 Morch 2023
327.48 631.64
335 7.1
021 =
(283.80) (327.48)
(2.46) 315)
(0.93) {0:21)
4385 307,71
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(Amount in JINR million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 27 - Employee beaefits expense

Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 34)

Staff welfare expenses

Note 28 - Finsnce costs

Interest exp on financial lisbilities d at amortised cost :
- on borrowings

- on lease liabilities

Interest on income tax

Other cost (includes interest on MSME, custom duty etc.)

Note 29 - Depreciation and amoriization expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Note 30 - Other expenses

Advertisement

Insurance

Communication expenses
Lenal and professionsl fee

Rent

Travel and convevance
Shifting and handling expenses
Security services

Loss allowance

Provision for doubtful Deposits
Provision for doubtful advance
Commission and incentive
Packing expenses

Repairs and maintenance (Other)
Rates and taxes

Power and fuel

Freight charges

Donation

CSR expenditure

Business support expenses
Loss on derecounition of financial assets
Miscellaneous expenses

For the yesr ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
11842 156.20
295 343
0.61 096
122,01 160.59
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
0.21 0.06
231 330
0.66 =
171 114
439 4.50
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
832 8.82
3.16 293
12.14 12.13
23.62 23.58
— el
Far the yesr ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
40.27 35.98
1.84 2,67
131 1.76
18.95 29.86
8.49 10.24
13.17 17.57
2826 19.7%6
232 235
1,02 025
0.10 325
0.20 5
61.90 93.19
8.53 11.19
L.71 1,98
1,23 1.82
128 1.95
61.66 75.61
- 0.10
539 B.B1
645 9.05
4.65 255
24.46 17.48
15319 347.42
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Notes (o the Consolidated Fi ial St

for year ended 31 March 2024

(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 30 - Other expenses (continued)

Payment to auditors (excluding goods and services tax)

As suditor:

- Statutory audit

- Tax audit

- Limited review

- Reimbursement of expenses
A

t debited to C N2 o0l 8 Qene

of Profit and Loss

- Others services
Total payments

Note 31 - Tax expense

-4

=

A tr {zed in Consolidated Stat
Current tax:
- Current year

of Profit and Loss:

Deferred tax:
- Attributable to origination and reversal of temporary differences

Total tax expense recognized

. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Loss before tax

Tax at India’s statutory tax rate of 25.17%

Tax effect of nan-deductible expenses

Brought Forword taxes on which deferred 1ax assets was not created earlier
Adjustment related to earlier year

Share of loss from subsidieries

Effect of intercompany eflmination impact

Effect of Income tmable at different rate

Effect of different tax rate In subsidiary

Others

Income tax expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

1 1

tax r d in other comprehensive income

Arising on income and gnized in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation
Total income tax recognized in other comprehensive income

income info:-

Bifurcation of the income tax 8 d in other compreh
Items thet will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Deferred tax bal reflected in the Bal Sheet:

Deferred tax asset
Deferred tax liability
Deferred tax asset (net)

Movement in deferred tax balances

Deferred tax asset

Provision for employee benefits
Income tax losses

E d credit Joss
Unrealised profit on mventory
Refund linbility

Lease liabilities

Deferred tax asset (A)

Il on advances and trade receivables

Deferred tax liability

Excess depreciation as per Income tax Act, 1961 over depreciation as per books
ROU

Mutual fund gain (unrealized gain)

Deferred tax liability (B)

Deferred tax asset (net) (A+B)

Deferred tax asset

Provision for employee benefits
Income tex lnsses
Expected credit loss all
Unrealised profit on inventory
Refund Liability

Lease libilities

Deferred tax asset (A)

bl

on trade r

Deferred tax liability

Excess depreciation as per Income tax Act, 1961 over depreciation as per books
ROU

Mutua! fund gain (unrenlized gain)

Deferred tox linbility (B)

Delerred tax ayset (net) (A+B)

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

1.60 1.45
0.40 0.38
113 1.08
0.11 0.07
3 1.98

- 0.52
E‘ 3.50

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

15.60 116
(23.10) (26.08)
{7.50 __(24.92)
{25.44) (107.42)
(6.40) (27.04)
1.62 1.90
= (0.52)
0.68 0.41
(0.95)
(2.59)
1.03 023
(0.89) 0.09
(7.50) Q492)
(0.10} 0.19
(0.10) 0.1%
(0.10) 0.19
(0.10) 0.19
As at As st
31 March 2024 31 March 2022
59.74 43.33
(10.72) (16.04)
49.02 27.29
Asat R ized in Recognized in Other As at
1April 2023 Statement of Profit and Comprehensive Income 31 Masrch 2024
Loss
2.65 1.34 (0.10) 389
30.51 19.73 50.24
0.34 (0.56) - 0.28
0.17 0.95 112
0.97 (1.60) - (0.63)
819 (3.08) = S.18
43.33 16.79 (0.10) 59.74
0.77) 0.07 - (0.70)
(7.31) 3.05 (426)
(7.56) 220 - (5.76)
(16.04) 532 - {10.72)
1729 22.11 (0.10) 49.02
e = b
Asat Recognized in Recognized in Other As st
1 April 2022 Statement of Profit and Comprehensive Income 31 March 2023
Loss
1.62 1.03 0,19 265
30.51 30.51
- 0.84 - 0.84
- 0.17 017
1.65 (0.68) - 097
10.50 271 - 819
14.17 29.16 0.19 4333
(1.15) 038 - 077)
(10.37) 3.06 (7.31)
(1.&9 (6:32) - (7.96)
(13.16) (2.68) - (16,04)
1.0 26,28 0.19 27.29

Deferred lax asset on brought forward losses is considered recoverable as the Holding Company expecl future taxable profit against which the deferred tax asse t{ﬂl b'e‘x:f:\ &

/<

-

¢
)

s e
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Notes to the C lidated Fi ial S ts for year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 32 - Earnings per share For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
i. (Loss) for basic/diluted eaming per share of face value of INR 10 each
Loas for the year (17.94) (82.50)
ii. Calculation of Weighted average number of equity shares for (basic and diluted)

(a) Number of shares at the beginning of the year 1,00,00,175 1,00,00,175
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 1,00,00,175 1,00,00,175
Basic and diluted earnings per share (face value of INR 10 each) (L.79) (8.25)

Note 33 - Segment information
The Board of directors of Nureca Limited takes decision in respect of allocation of resources and assesses the performance basis the reports/ information provided by functional heads and is thus considered to

be Chief Operating Decision Maker CODM.

The Group is engeged in business of home healthcare and wellness products in the domestic market only which is considered to be a single busi gment / geographical segment by CODM.
Considering the nature of Group's business and operations, there are no separate reportable segy / lidated (busi and/ or geographical) in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 ‘Operating
Segments’ and hence, there are no sdditional discl to be provided other than those already provided in the fi ial
s, _Informatinn about products and services
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from branded healthcare products 919.28 1,113.23
Total 919.28 994.26

b. Information sbout geographical areas
The geographical information anelyses the Group's revenues by the Group's country of domicile (i.e. India) and other countries. In presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been
based on the geographic location of customers. The following is the distribution of the Group’s consolidated revenues and receivables by geographical market, regardless of where the goods were

produced:
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
i. Revenue from customers
India 919.28 1,112.97
Outside India - 0.26
919.28 1,113.23
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ii. Trade receivables
India 16.15 42.95
Outside India _0.03 0.03
16.18 42.98
ili) Nopn-current asseta

There are no non-current assets outside India

¢. Information about major customers (from external customers)
Revenue from two customer of the Company hes covered morc than 10% of total tumover. The name of the customer is KKOC INR. 407.60 million (31 March 2023 : Rs. 347.05) and Oaline flipkart INR

187.71 (31 March 2023 : Rs, 323.49) respectively, constitute more than 10% of the total revenue of Company.

Note 34 - Employee benefits

a. Defined contribution plans
The Group makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, towards Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme (EST) which are collectively defined as defined

contribution plans. The Group has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit end Loss as they accrue, The amount recognized
as an expense towards contribution to Provident Fund and EST are as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Contribution to provident and other fimds (refer note 27) 2.95 343
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b,

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratity Act, 1972. Under the Act, employees wha heve commpleted five years of service ere entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefit provided
depends on the member's length of scrvice and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled to & benefit cquivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service, The same is payable on
termination of service or retirement or death whichever is earlier.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuaral valuation as at the reporting date using the projected unit credit method, which recognizes each

period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and each unit sep ly to build up the final obligation. The obligations are d at the present value of the
estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on govenment bonds as at the date of

actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and losses (net of tax) are recognized immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (ocn.

This is an unfunded benefit plan for qualifying employees. This scheme provides for 2 lump sum payment to vested enployees st retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment.

Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service.

The above defined benefit plan exposes the Group to following risks:

Interest rate risk:
The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase,

Salary inflation risk:

Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

Demographic risk:

This is the risk of variebility of results due to ic nature of d that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and retiremsnt. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit
obligation js not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate end vesting criteria.

The following table seis out the status of the dofined henefit plan as required under Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits:

Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
i. Reconcilintion of preseat value of defined benefit obligation
Balance at the beginning of the year 6.94 4.14
Interest cost 0.62 0.46
Current service cost 245 1.84
Past service cost - 0.01
Benefits paid (0.04) (0.29)
Actuarial Joss d in other comprehensive i
- from changes in financial Pt 0.23 0.05
- from changes in demographi pion - 0.00
- fiom experience adjustments {0.58) 0.72
Balance at the end of the year 9.62 f?_d
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
it. Amount recognized in statement of profit and loss
Interest cost 0.62 0.46
Current service cost 245 1.84
Past service cost - 0.01
3.07 231
—
jii. R recognized in other comprel i
Actuarial Joss for the year on defined benefit obligation (0.35) 0.77
0.77

(0.35)

iv. Actuarial assumptions
(i) Economic assumptions

The principal arc the di

rate and salary growth rate, The discount rate is generally based upon the market yield evaileble on the Government bonds at the accounting date with a term

that matches thet of the liebilities and the salary growth rate takes account of inflation, seniority, pr and other re) factors on long term basis.
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rate (per annum) 70% 1.2%
Future salary growth rate (per annum)* 15% 15%
Expected average remaining working lives (years) Holding Company 25.39 24.65
Expected nverage renmining working lives (years) Subsidiary Company (NTPL) 30.77 31.02
(i) Demographic assumptions
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Retirement age (years) 58 58
Mortality rate 1ALM 2012-14Ult IALM 2012-14UIt
Attrition rate (per annum) 10% 10%
*Selary rate is considered ways on the expected future growth in salary amount post inflationary risk.
v. Sensitivity analysis on defined beaefit obligation on sccount of change in significant sssumption:
Pyt (he yeus ended Tor the year cudel
31 March 2024 31 Mnrchﬂ)}l
Tucrease
Discount rate (1% movenent) (0.89) (0.65)
Futurs salary growth rate (1% movement) 070 048
Artrition rates (1% movement) (0.25) (0.19)
Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 0.96 0.77
Future salary yrowth rate (1% movement) (n.64) (0.43)
Attrition mtes (196 movensnt) W o . 0.3 —-—-..0'22
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The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an ption while holding all other iptions In practice, this is uniikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be
feulated with the projested

correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuerial assumptions the same methods (present value of defined benefit obligation
unit credit method al the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognized in the balance sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used in

preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.
vi. ccted mmturity analysis of the defined benefit plan in future years

Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Between 1 to 4years 2.82 1.88
Beyond 5 years 20,54 2471
Total expected payments 23.36 26.60
vii. Weighted average d. ion of the defined benefit plan:
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
14.47 14.15

Weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan (in years)

Note 35 - Related parties as per IND-AS

A. List of related parties and nature of relationship with whom transactions have taken place during the current/previous year

Description of Relationabip i WName of ihe Fariy

Mr. Saurabh Goyal - Managing Director

Mr. Aryan Goyal - Whole Tire Director & Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Nishant Garg - Chief Financial Officer ( upto 20-Nov-2023)
Mr Naresh Gupta-Chief Financial Officer ( w.e.f. 20-Novw-2023)
Ms. Chetna Anand- Company Secretery

M. Rajinder Sharma - Wholetime Director (w.e.f 28 May 2022)
Mr. Vikram Choudhary -Independent Director

Mr. Vijasy Kumar Sharma - Independent Director

Ms. Ruchita Agarwal - Independent Director

Ms. Charu Singh - Independent Director

Mr. Nitin R.Bidikar (upto 24 November 2022)

Key management personnel ('KMP')

Relatives of KMPs Mrs. Payal Goyal
Mrs. Reman Goyal

Entities in which KMP and/or their relatives have significant influence Nectar Biopharma Private Lirmited
Dr Trust Charitable Trust

C. The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties.

Nature of transaction Name of related party For the year ended For the year ended
:31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Reimbursement of expensc paid by the Grou; Nectar Biopharma Private Limited 0.15 -
P P Y p
2 Salery to KMPs and their relatives * Mr. Saurabh Goyal 19.23 18.00
Mrs. Payal Goyal 13.68 13.68
Mr. Aryan Goyal 18.75 15.86
Mr. Nishant Garg 2.28 3.25
Mr. Naresh Gupta 1.37 -
Ms. Chetna Anand 1.38 128
Mr. Rajinder Sharma 0.30 0.20
3 Sale of products Mr. Aryan Goyal - 0.01
Mr. Saurabh Goyal 0.01 0.00
Ms. Chetna Anand # 0.00 N
4 Sitting Fee Mr. Vijay Kumar Sharmna 0.60 0.40
Ms. Ruchita Agarwal 0.07 0.04
Ms. Charu Singh 0.07 0.05
Mr. Nitin R.Bidiker - 0.02
Mr. Vikram Choudhary N 003
5 Commission and incentive Nectar Biopharma Private Limited 0.01 =
6 Rent Incorme Dr Trust Charitable Trust 0.04 0.04
7 Rent Expenses Mrs, Raman Goyal - 0.96
8 Contribution to corpus fund Dr. Trust Charitable Trust . 0.10
#Amount is immaterial
* Breek-up of compensation of key managerial personnel of the Company
Short-term employee benefils 56.98 5227
Post-employment benefits 5.24 3.36
Qther long-term empl oyer. henefits 1.80 1.80
Total compensation paid to key management persounel /62-!3—-\\ 55.63

The amount disclosed above in the table are the amounts recognized as expense during the reparting period related to key management persanne!
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D. Bal ding at vear end

i As at As st
N f

ature of transaction Nome of related party T R ey - A0S
1 Payable to cmployees Mr. Saurabh Goyal 0.86 0.79
M. Aryan Goyal 0.86 1.04
Ms, Payzl Goyal 0.76 0.76
Mr. Nishant Garg - 0.21
Mr. Naresh Gupta 031 -
Ms. Chetna Anand 0.12 0.10
Mr. Rajinder Sharma 0.03 0.02
2 Bomwoings Nectar Biopharma Private Lintted 0.83 0.82
3 Corpus fund Dr. Trust Charitable Trust - 0.10
4 Trade receivables Dr Trust Charitable Trust 0.04 -
Mr. Saurebh Goyal 0.01 -

E. Terms and conditions of fransactiens with related parties
The transaction with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and within ordinary course of business.
Outstanding bal atthey d are ed and interest free except borrowings and settlement occurs in cash.

F. Subsequent Event
Subsequent ot year end the Holding Corpany has provided a corporate gaurantee (o ICICI Bank Limiited for the working capital facility to be availed by Nureca Technologies Private Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Nureca limited.

Note 36 - Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their

correspond with its the Entrepreneurs M dum Number as allocated efter filing of the M dum. Accordingly, the discl in respect of amounts payable to such enterprises as

at the year end has been made in the Standalone Fi ial S based on information available with the Company as under;

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(i)  The amounts remaining unpaid to micro, small and medium enterprises as at the end of the each
- Principal 5.02 291
- Interest -

(ii) The amounlt of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27of
2006), along with the amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the each year

(iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the 015 015
each year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED act 2006. ’ ’
(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each year 0.15
(v)  The amount of further interest due and payable even in the ding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actuelly paid to the
small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under secon 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 0.15 0.15
Devel Act, 2006

0.15
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Note 37 - Financial instrument : fair value measurements

Set out below, is 8 comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the financial instruments of the Group, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair
values:

Note  Level of As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
hierarchy Amortised Fair value Amortised Fair value
Cost through P&L Cost  through P&L
Financial assets
Investments
-Current Investments [ - 936.33 - 590.85
Trade receivables [ 16.15 - 42.95 .
Cash and cash equivalents c 140,62 - 5,04 -
Other bank balances c 312.42 - 704.62 -
Other financial assets © 83.28 - _40.98 -
552.47 936.33 793,59 590.85
Financial liabilities
Borrowings b 4.84 - 0.82 i
Lease Liability b 20.32 - 3245 E
Trade payebles c 51.74 . 49.90 -
Other financial lisbilities c 0.42 0.20 0.36 -
77.32 0.20 83.53 5

Notes:

a.  Market value of quoted investment is taken as fair value.

b, Fair valuation of the loans and borrowings is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchenged in a current transaction between willing parties, other then in e forced or
liguidation sale, Subsequent measurements of all assets and liabilitics is at amortised cost, using effective interest rate (EIR) method.

c.  Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with short term maturities is d as approxi to respective carrying amount due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

d.  The Holding Company has entered in future and options contract for shares during the current year, These derivative contracts are recognised in other income at FVTPL and ell outstanding
contracts are marked to market as at year end.

-3

There are no transfers between level 1, fevel 2 and level 3 during the years presented. There has been no finencial assets of financial liabilities that has been fair valued through OCL.
Note 38 - Financial risk management

Risk management framework
The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, The G'roup s senior g oversees the T( of these risks, The Group’s senior management is responsible to ensure that
Group’s financial risk activities which are govemed by appropriate policics and procedures and that fi ial risks are identified, meesured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk

objectives. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized below.

(i) Market risk
Market risk is the risk thet the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market-prices. Market risk comprises inlerest rale risk and currency risk

financial instruments affected by market risk include trade receivables, borrowings end investments measured at fair value through profit and loss account. The objestive of market risk management
is 10 manage and control market risk within ptable p while optimizing the return,

P

(a) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. The Group does not expose to the risk of changes

in market interest rates as Group's long and short term debt obligations are of fixed interest rate,
(b) Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate b of changes in foreign hange retes, The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in

foreign exchange rates relates primarily to its operating activities (when certain purchases and trade payables are d inated in a foreign ).
The Group undemkes transactions denominated in foreign currencies and consequently, exposes to exchenge rate fluctuetions. The Group does not enter into trade financial instruments including
derivate fi ] instr for hedging its foreign currency risk. The appropriateness of the risk policy is reviewed periodically with reference to the epproved foreign currency risk management

policy followed by the Group.

Exposure to currency risk:

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary lisbilities at the end of each reporting period are as follows:
As 8t 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2024
Currency Amount in Amount in Amount in Amount in
Foreign Indian Foreign Indian
Currency Currency Currency Currencz
Trade Receivables # UsD 0.00 0.04 0.00 0.03
Trade payubles UsSD 022 18.26 032 26.37

Out of the sbove foreign currency exposures, none of the monetary assets and liabilitics arc hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise.

# Amount is below rounding off norms

Sensitivity analysis:

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decreasc in the INR sgainst relevant foreign cumencies. 5% is the rate used in order to determine the sensitivity analysis
considering the past trends and exp ions of the T for changes in the foreign currency exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis includes the ding foreign d inated
monetary items and adjust their transaction at the year end for 5% chenge in foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates & increase in profit or equity where the INR strengthens 5%
against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the INR against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impect on the profit or equity balance belaw would be negative, This
fi ial assets and financial liabilities outstanding es at the year end. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular

analysis is performed on foreign currency d inated tary
interest rates, remain constsnt and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
Strenpthening  Weakenin Strengthenin Weakenin

Adar 31 Mareh 2024

USD 5% movement 0.91 (0.91) 0.68 (0.68)
USD 5% movement # 0.00 (0.00) 0.00 (0.00)
As at 31 March 2023

USD 5% movement # 0.00 (0.00) .00 (0.00)
LISD 5% movement 1.32 (1.32) 0.99 (0.99)

#Amount is below rounding of norms. A»&




Nureca Limited
Notes 10 the Consolidated Finuncisl Statemerts for year eaded 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR million, unlexs otherwise stated)

() Credh risk

Credil risk Is the risk that courderparty will not mect its obligatiors under a financial instrumenl or customer contmct, leading Lo a financial Joss The Group is exposed lo credil rigk from ils npemmu activilies (primarily trade
receivables) and from its fimancing activities, including deposils wilh banks, Mamgemeni fas a eredit policy in place and Lhe exposure 1o credil risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit arc onall

Tequiring credil over & certain amound,

(n) Trade receivabiea

Customer credit risk is mamaged as per the Gronp's establisted pohcy. pmeedum and coniml relating 10 customer credil risk managemers. Credil qualily of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit raling scorecard and
individual credil limits arc defined in with this | are regularly mon

Based on interml assesoment which is driven by the historical experiercefcurrese facts available in relation to default and delays in collection thereof, the credil risk for trade receivables is comsidered low, The Group estimates ils
nllowance far trade recrivable using lifetime expected credit loss. Inividual receivables which are known 1o be uncollectible are writien off by reducing the castying amount of Lrade receiveble and the amownt of Lhe loss is recogrized in
Lhe Statemerd of Profit and Loss within oLher expenses.

The L obles an the dete wase
Armt Assl

31 March 1024 31 March202).
Not doe [ XT] 4L1E
Uplo 180 days 15.96 152
More Lhan 180 dnys 0.09 027
Total 16.15 42.95
Movemeunt in expected credht Joxs allowance of trade receivable Asnt Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the begimming of the year 0.25 ¥
Balance writien of during Lhe year 0.25) =
Additions during the ycar = 0.25
Halasce ot the end of the year - 0.

(b) Casb and cash equivalents and deposils with banks
Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are held with banks which have high credit raling. The Group considers that its cash and cash equivalents have Jow credit risk based on the extcrmal credit ralings of the counterpariies,

(c) Security deposits
The Group furniched security deposils Lo its lessor for oblaining the premises on lease and margin moncy deposils 10 tanks. The Group corsiders (hat its deposits have low credit sisk or negligible risk of default as the parties are well

cstablished entities and have strong capacity 1 meet the obligations. Also, where Lhe Group expects that there is an unceriainty In the recovery of depasil, it provides for suitable Impairment on Lhe same,

() Otber fiancials suscts
These asei are consider 1o be Jow eredit risk as thase marfics / banks are well established emilies and have sireng capacity Lo meet the obligations.

{ti) Liguidity risk
Liguidity risk i the risk Liml the Group may not be ablc 10 meet its prescet and fulure cash and collateral obligations without Incurring unaceeptabls Josses. The Group's objective s (o, at all times majniain optimum levels of Jiquidity to
mex its cash and collateral rquirements. The Group closely monitors jts liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. 1L maintains adequate sou ross of firancing including loens from banks at an optimlz=d cost.

As 2131 March 2024 Carrying nmount On demand Upio 1 Year 2-3 year More than 3 yeam Total
ings ing Jease Linbiliti 484 - 158 164 162 4.84

Other firancial liabilities (exchuding Jease fisbilitles) 062 - 0.62 - . 0.62
Trade payables 5174 - 5114 174 - 3348
Lezse Jiobilities 2032 - 7.01 10.45 6.76 24.22
Total 1152 - 6095 13.83 838 83.16

Ax at 31 Mxrch 2023 Carryiog amount On demasd Upto ! Year 2-) year More than 3 yeann Total
&S lease liabilit 0.95 - 1.03 - . 1.03

Other fimncial liabilities (excluding lease liahililies) 036 - 0.36 . € 0,36
Trade payables 49.90 - 49.90 044 - 5034
Lease tabilitics 3245 = 1453 12.59 11.63 JB.7S
Tolal §3.66 + 6582 13.00 11.61 9048

Liase liabilities disclosed in nole 1o 16,

{fv) Excessive rsh concentration
Concentraliors arise when a umber of couniciparties arc ergaged in similas business activities, or activilics in Lhe same geograplical region, or have economic features that would cause their abilily (o meet cortractual obligations (0 be
similarty afTected by changes in economic, political er other conditions. Conceniralions indicaie the relalive semsitivity of Lhe Company's performance 10 developments affecting & panticular indusiry, The Company bas significan
business through online market plece porial and few distribulors (refer note 33C for s2le to major parties)

Note 39- Capital rak mansgement

() Risk Management

For the purpose of the Group's capital maragemend, eagital includes issued equity capital, and all olher exquity reserves attributable 1o the equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of the Group's capital mamagemend is o maximize
the gharetolder value

“The Company manages Iis nplul structure and makes adjustmerus ia light of changes in economic conditions, business stralegies and future commitmenis. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend

paymen to ital 1o or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using 8 gearing ratio, which is net del divided by 10tal capilal pius nei debt The Cormpany includes within net deb, trade payshles and
bomowings, less cash and asheqxuvalems
Partieulan Asat Asat
3) March 2034 31 March 3073
Trade payables (Reler note 18) 51.74 49.90
Bomowings (Refer mole 15) 4.96 0.95
Other (inancial liability (Refer role 19) 0.62 0.J6
Other current liability (Refer rote 20) 2322 2259
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Refer noic 10) 14052
Net debt (60.0A) ELTE
Equity share capilal (Refer note 13) 10000 100,00
Other equity (Refer mote 14) LAY 1 R50 8
Total eaphtal 1.831.1 19552
Capitel and nct debt LATLO FTREDY
Gearing ratlo -3.11% JA 1%
Inorder to achieve this overall abjective, the Group’s capilal maragement, amongst other Ihings, aims lo mainiaininvestor, credilor and market and {0 susain future of the business.
(b} Dividend not recogalsed al the end of Lhe year
Subsequent to the year end, the Boacd of Directors has not recommended payment of final dividend for the fimncial year ended 31 March 2024,
Note 40- Contingent liabilities snd commiments (fo the extent not provided for)
(8] Claims spaingt Group sol scknowledged o debin
Asat Axal
Partiouisrs 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income {ax gudier 021 021
Income tax meiers

No tax expensc has been accrued in financial stalements for the tax demand raised. The Group is contesting the demand and Lhe management belicves thal the ullimate outcome of the proceeding will not have a materia) adverse effect on the
compury's finuiinl pusition oo ruults uf ypsiations

Tre Group has lodge certain civil cnses wyzinst utler patties including distributors and helleve that the ultimals ouleome of (he proceeding will nol have a material adverse effect on the company’s firncial position and rwilts ot aperatiors of
lhe Uompany.

M -{..j:éf‘
N ,A

¥ Pwsuam to judgement by the Hon'ble Supreme Count dated 2B February 2019, it was held that basic wages for the purpose of provident fund, 1o include special allowances which are common for all cinployors However tkn/q\J
uncenainty with respect 10 the spplicable of U judgement and penad from which the same epplies. The Group has estimaicd Ui impsat vf Ux: samne frou post 2B February 2019 end recognized in the firmacial sstement Owi
aloresaid uncertainty and pending clarification from the authorify in this regard, (he Group has not recognized any provision for the pefiod prior o date of judgement. Further memagement also believes that the impact of the

Comgany wil) not be material.
a_/




Nureca Limited
Notes to the C lidated Fi - Qtat,

ts for year ended 31 March 2024

(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Note 41- Additional information pursuant to paragraph 2 of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act 2013 - ‘General instructions for the preparation of consolidated financial

statements’ of Division IT of Schedule IIT

As at 31 March 2024
Name of entity in the group Share in other Share in total
Net Assets Share in profit comprehensive income comprehensive income
(Total assets - Totsl liabilities)
As % of consolidated Amount As% of Amount As % of consolidated Amount As % of consolidated ~ Amount
net assets consolidated other comprehensive total comprehensive
profit income income
Parent
Nureca Limited 99.87%  1,928.59 136.15% (24.41) 172.54% 0.39 135.68% (24.02)
Subsidiary
Nureca Inc, U.S.A -0.14% (2.62) 524% (0.94) -11.09% (0.03) 5.45% (0.97)
Nureca Healthcare Private Limited, India -0.01% (0.12) 0.33% (0.06) 0.00% - 0.33% (0.06)
Nureca Technologies Private Limited, 2.06% 39.73 -61.06% 1095 -62.63% 11.09
India
Elimination -1.79% (34.48) 19.34% (347 £1.45% (0.14) 21.16% (3.75)
Total 1931.11 -17.93 0.23 -17.70
As at 31 March 2023
Name of entify in the group Net Assets Share in profit Share in other Share in total
comprehensive income comprehensive income
(Totn] assets - Total linbilities)
As % of consolidated Amount As% of  Amount As % of consolidated Amount As % of consolidated =~ Amount
net assets consolidated other comprehensive total comprehensive
profit income income
Parent
Nureca Limited 10017%  1,952.10 102,72% (84.75) 86.71% (0.58) 133.30% (85.33)
Subsidiary
Nureca Inc, U.S.A. -0.08% (1.57) 0.97% (0.80) 13.45% (0.09) 1.07% (0.89)
Nureca Healthcare Private Limited, India 0.00% (0.06) 0.07% (0.06) 0.00% - 0.07% (0.06)
Nureca Technologies Private Limited, 151% 29.14 4.03% 332 0.00% - 4.74% 332
India
Elimination -1.58% (30.79) 0.26% (0.21) -0.16% 0.00 0.26% (0.21)
Tolal 1.948.82 gsz.so; (0.67) -33._[1

A




Nurecs Limited
Notes to the Consali d Fi

5 for year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwize tated)

Note - 42 Other statulory information

()The Group does not have any Benami property, where any p

Jing, has been

{it) The Geoup does nat have any transactions with companies struck off in current financial year.

(i) The Group has not revalued its property, plant and
() The Group has not traded or invested & Cryplo ¢
(¥} The Group has not advanced of loaned ar imvested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),
shall: (o) direetly or indirectly lend or mvest in other persans or entitics identified in any manner

guarantee, security of the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(Vi) The Group hns not received any fund from
the Company shall. (p) directly or indir

(b) provide any guaraniee, security or the like on behall of the Ulimate Beneficiaries

(vii) The Group has not any such transaction which is not recorded

the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other r

ncluding foreign entities {1
whatsoever by or an behalfl of the

of pending against the Company for holding any Benami property

equipment (including right-of-use assets) or imtargble assets or both during the current or previcus year
urrency of Virtual Currency during the financial vear

) with the und: ling that the Intermediary
pany (Ulemate Benefi ) or {b) provide any
ding (whether ded in writing or otherwise) that

any person(s) or entity (ies), including forcign entities (Funding Party) with the und,
ectly lend ot invest in other persons or entities identificd in an

y manser whatioever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimnte Beneficiaries) or

in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the yeer in the tax assessments under
elevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(viil) The Group has borrowings for vehicle loan from bank and un secured loan from related party. There is no requirement to file the quarierly current asset stock statement with bank,

(&) None of the entities in the Company hove been declared wilf! defaulicr by any bank or financial institution o

{x) The Group has complied with the number of lyers prescnibed under the Companies Act, 2013

(x1) The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrngement which has an aceountin,

B UTIPACL on current or previous financial year,

govermment o any government authority.

(xn) The Group including the “Companies in the CGroup™ (as per the p of the Core In Comyp (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) do not have any Core Investment

Note 43 - Ratioy

Particulars Numerator iDenmninnlnr 31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-23 [Change Reason for variance >25%

Current Ratio Total Current Assels Total Current Liabilities 20.77 21.00 “L1%[NA

Diebt-Equaty Ratio Total debi ( lense hobility} Total shereholder equity 0.01 0,02 -23.7%|NA

Debi Service Coverage Ratio Eaming available for debt service Debt service 149 (327) 145.6% | Diebt service covermge ratio hes imcrensed for year
ended 3] March 2024, dus to incrense in exrning
available for debt services.

Retumn on Equity Ratio Net profit after tax Average sharcholder equity -1% 4% 78.2% |Retum on equity has increased for year ended 31
March 2024 due to reduced losses in the current year|
s compared to previous financial year.

Inventory tumnover ratio Com of goods sold Average inventory 186 155 20.0%|NA

| Trade Receivables tumover 1atis | Net credit revenue Average accounts receivable Ln 3097 0.4%|NA

Trade payables tumover rolio |Net credit purchese + other expense | Average trade payable 1821 16.02 13.7%|NA

Net capital tumover ratio Net revenue ‘Warking capital 0.50 0.63 -19.96%NA

Net profit ratio Net Profit afler tax Nel revenue -2% -T% 7% | Net profil ratio has increased dus 10 Jower Josses in
curreni year inspite of lower sales Also due 1o
improvement in GP margin and reduction in
administrative expenses,

Retwm en Capital employed Eaming before interest and taxes Tangible net Worth+ Total de! -1% -5% 78.4%| Retum on capital esmployed ratio has incroased
because the Company has reduced losses resulting in
increase in ROCE.

Return on investment Income generated from imvestment Average investment 8% 5% 45.1% lInvesument in mutual fund end ghares has Inerense as
compared 1o previous year s a result of which gain

on sale of investment have imcreased.

Note 44-Code on Socisl Security

The Indian Parlisment has approved the Code an Social Securi
Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Se
Company will assess the impact and its evaluation once the sul

related rules 1o d
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